
Agenda Report 

DATE: June 15,2009 

CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: DESIGN CONTRACT AWARD TO DOKKEN ENGINEERING FOR 
THE LA LOMA ROAD BRIDGE RETROFIT AND REHABILITATION 
PROJECT 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council: 

1. Acknowledge the Final Environmental lmpact Report for the project, which 
was certified on September 25, 2006, and the Notice of Determination 
which was filed with the Los Angeles County Recorder's Office on 
September 28, 2006; 

2. Authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with DOKKEN 
Engineering for preliminary design engineering of the La Loma Road 
Bridge Project, in an amount not to exceed $135,336.00, which is within 
the approved expenditure authorization from Caltrans. Competitive bidding 
is not required pursuant to City Charter Section 1002 (F) professional or 
unique services; and 

3. Authorize the City Manager to enter into a contract with DOKKEN 
Engineering for final design of the project, in an amount not to exceed 
$31 1,522, after receiving an additional expenditure authorization from 
Caltrans. Competitive bidding is not required pursuant to City Charter 
Section 1002 (F) professional or unique services. 

BACKGROUND: 

Several alternatives were presented in the Final Environmental lmpact 
ReportlEnvironmental Assessment (FEIRIEA) document for the La Loma Road 
Bridge Project, and the FEIRIEA identified the Bridge Retrofit and Rehabilitation 
alternative as the environmentally superior alternative. On September 25, 2006, 
the City Council certified the Final Environmental lmpact Report, directed the City 
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Clerk to file a Notice of Determination with the Los Angeles County Recorder, and 
awarded a design contract to HDR Engineering. 

After receiving the funding authorization from Caltrans on June 14, 2007, the City 
entered into a design contract with the original design consultant, HDR 
Engineering, and began the design phase of the project. During the preliminary 
stage of design, the City's consultant performed a Geological and Geotechnical 
Investigation and discovered the Eagle Rock fault, which crosses the bridge 
roughly in between the two footings of pier 4. The location of the fault line has 
caused a major change in the scope of design, and therefore Caltrans required 
the City to process a new design contract. 

As a result of the Caltrans requirements, the City did not renew the HDR contract 
which had expired and started processing a new Request for Proposal (RFP). 
The RFP was issued on December 9,2008, for "On-Call Design and Right of Way 
Support Services for Federally Funded Bridge Projects". The proposals were 
evaluated and the consultants were ranked based on the selection evaluation 
criteria set forth in the RFP. The three top-ranked firms were short-listed and 
invited for interviews on February 3, 2009, and ranked by the Consultant 
Selection Committee. The short-listed consultants were DOKKEN Engineering, 
Parsons, and AECOM. Attachment A provides the ranking and score of each 
consultant by the interview panel, and also provides the criteria by which they 
were rated. 

DOKKEN Engineering was the top ranked consultant and was asked to submit a 
cost proposal to complete the design in two phases (Preliminary Design and Final 
Design). The total fee for the Preliminary Design Phase will be in an amount not 
to exceed $135,336. The total fee for the Final Design will be an amount not 
exceed $31 1,522. The City has negotiated the contract amount with DOKKEN 
Engineering, and has simultaneously coordinated with Caltrans for the 
requirements of the future expenditure authorization to award the second phase 
of the design contract. 

It is expected that the construction cost will need to be increased by several 
million dollars due to additional impacts of the fault line. The City is planning to 
request additional Highway Bridge Program (HBP) federal funding from Caltrans, 
after DOKKEN Engineering finalizes the preliminary engineering and prepares an 
updated cost estimate. 

It is anticipated that the design will take approximately one year to complete, and 
the construction will take approximately 18 months to complete. 
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FISCAL IMPACT: 

The La Loma Bridge - Rehabilitation or Replacement project is included in the 
current Capital Improvement Program (Budget Account 73124), and sufficient 
Federal Demonstration Project Funds are available to cover the City's share of 
both of the phases of project design. It is anticipated that additional federal 
funding for the construction phase of the project will be requested from Caltrans 
under the Highway Bridge Program (HBP). 

Respectfully submitted, 

MICHAEL/ BECK 
City Manager 

SfepHenwalker 
Principal Engineer 

Approved by: 

c--------A 

Y Department of Public Works 








